EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL COUNCIL MINUTES

Committee:	Council	Date:	4 November 2014
Place:	Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping	Time:	7.30 - 8.50 pm
Members Present:	Councillors A Boyce (Chairman), Mrs Mrs H Brady, W Breare-Hall, R But Mrs R Gadsby, L Girling, P Gode, H Kauffman, P Keska, J Knapma Mrs M McEwen, H Mann, L Mead, A S Murray, S Neville, J Philip, M Ms G Shiell, D Stallan, Ms S S Mrs L Wagland, G Waller, A Watt J M Whitehouse, D Wixley and N Wr	tler, GCh MrsAGr In, MsY A Mitchell ArsCPPo tavrou, s, CWh	nambers, K Chana, D Dorrell, igg, R Jennings, Ms H Kane, Knight, Mrs J Lea, A Lion, MBE, G Mohindra, R Morgan, ond, C C Pond, C Roberts, B Surtees, Mrs T Thomas,
Apologies:	Councillors K Angold-Stephens, T	Church,	J Hart, Mrs S Jones, B Rolfe,

Officers G Chipp (Chief Executive), D Macnab (Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Neighbourhoods), R Palmer (Director of Resources), C O'Boyle (Director of Governance), A Hall (Director of Communities), S G Hill (Assistant Director (Governance & Performance Management)), T Carne (Public Relations and Marketing Officer), R Perrin (Democratic Services Assistant), A Hendry

B Sandler, Mrs M Sartin, Ms S Watson and S Weston

48. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION

The Assistant Director of Governance and Performance Management reminded everyone present that the meeting would be broadcast live to the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the webcasting of its meetings.

(Democratic Services Officer) and P Seager (Chairman's Secretary)

49. MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the Council meeting held on 30 September 2014 be taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record subject to the following amendments;

(a) Councillor Mohindra's apologies;

(b) The addition of the word 'alleged' before perpetrator in the response to Councillor J H Whitehouse question under Questions by Members Without Notice regarding Safety and Disturbance (minute 39(d)); and

(c) The addition of a question by Councillor C P Pond regarding parking enforcement at the approach to Traps Hill, Loughton car park under Questions by Members Without Notice (minute 39(h)).

50. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

(a) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor W Breare-Hall declared a personal interest in agenda item 16(a), Proposed Development of St Johns Road in Epping, by virtue of being a member of Epping Town Council. The Councillor had determined that his interest was pecuniary and would leave the meeting for the consideration of the issue.

(b) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor K Adams declared a personal interest in agenda item 16(a), Proposed Development of St Johns Road in Epping, by virtue of living within St John's Road. The Councillor had determined that his interest was pecuniary and would leave the meeting for the consideration of the issue.

(c) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor J M Whitehouse declared a personal interest in agenda item 16(a), Proposed Development of St Johns Road in Epping, by virtue of being a member of Epping Town Council and living within St John's Road. The Councillor had determined that his interest was pecuniary and would leave the meeting for the consideration of the issue.

(d) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor C Whitbread declared a personal interest in agenda item 16(a), Proposed Development of St Johns Road in Epping, by virtue of being a resident of Epping. The Councillor had determined that his interest was not pecuniary and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the issue. In addition, the Councillor advised that the personal statement that he had made previously in relation to items concerning the St John's Road development applied.

51. ANNOUNCEMENTS

(a) Announcements by the Chairman of Council

(i) Events;

The Chairman reported on some of the events he had attended since the last meeting of the Council. The Council noted that the Chairman had attended many events in the District including the opening of the Eco Shop in Epping, visiting the refurbished village hall in Roydon, a service at North Weald Methodist Church, the King Harold Day in Waltham Abbey, the opening of the MacDonald's double drive through at the Hastingwood roundabout, a visit to the Air Cadets in North Weald, the opening of Citizen Advise Bureau Annual General Meeting, attending the Youth Council Debate, visiting Sheltered Housing in Buckhurst Hill to celebrate a resident's 100th Birthday, attending a County Council Territorial Army event in Chelmsford, making lanterns with Children in the Library at Waltham Abbey and the Chairman's Civic Lunch at North Weald Airfield, including a trip on the Epping Ongar Railway.

(ii) Floral display

The Chairman advised that he intended to place the flowers from tonight's meeting in the Epping reception for the benefit of local residents and staff.

(iii) Former Councillor and Chairman Stephen Barnes

The Chairman informed the Council that Stephen Barnes had recently been in a serious accident and he had sent him letter on behalf of the Council.

(iv) Councillor Sandler

The Chairman announced that Councillor Sandler had been in hospital and was currently recovering at home.

(b) Announcements by the Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holders

There were no announcements under this heading.

52. PUBLIC QUESTIONS (IF ANY)

The Council noted that there were no public questions to be considered at this meeting.

53. QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS UNDER NOTICE

The Council noted that there were no Member questions made with notice to be considered at this meeting.

54. REPORTS FROM THE LEADER AND MEMBERS OF THE CABINET

The Council received written reports from members of the Cabinet.

The Chairman invited the Leader to provide an oral report and other members of the Cabinet to give an oral update.

(a) The Leader of the Council

The Leader advised that the Council had recently hosted an initial meeting of the Local Plan "Duty to Co-operate" Board, comprising of our Strategic Housing Market Area (SHMA) partner authorities of Harlow, Uttlesford and East Herts. The meetings were important going forward, particularly as it was anticipated that the Council neighbours may potentially need to accommodate some of the future growth.

The Leader reported that he had attended the Essex Leaders meeting and received a number of updates on the joint work that was being undertaken across the Essex Districts, where a topical discussion was had about the potential devolution of powers and responsibility for local authorities following the Scottish Independence Referendum.

Finally, the Leader advised that he had been invited to the Youth Conference, which was attended by all the Districts secondary schools and Epping Forest College. He had sat on the question time panel where young people had been discussing a range of social issues, including bullying, alcohol and drug use.

(b) Planning Policy Portfolio Holder

Councillor Bassett advised that a member's update session for the Local Plan regarding the Population Projections, Strategic Marketing Assessment for housing and the Economic Study was being held on Monday 10 November 2014 at 5.30 - 7 pm before the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

(c) Safer, Greener and Transport Portfolio Holder

Councillor Waller brought the Council's attention to the Big Community Switch scheme, which was referred to in his written report.

55. QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS WITHOUT NOTICE

(a) Probation Services

Councillor Surtees asked whether the Portfolio Holder for Safer, Greener and Transport agreed that the Community rehabilitation and Community Payback services had provided a high quality supervision of offenders and many hours of unpaid work to the benefit of the community; and whether the continuous and continuity of the services in the District would continue with the new providers in February 2015?

Councillor Waller advised that the probation services were currently going through great change and challenges with a split of services between the more serious offenders being dealt with nationally and a more local level working with the Community Safety Partnership Team.

(b) Waste Contract

Councillor C C Pond advised that with the Waste Contract changing hands this week, he thought that the Council should thank Sita for the service they have provided over their contract period?

Councillor W Breare-Hall advised that he had thanked Sita for the service they had provided over the last 7 years and he would pass on the Councils thanks but he was confident that following the competitive process to procure the Waste Service, Biffa would be even better.

(c) Housing Shortage

Councillor D Dorrell enquired whether the Planning Policy Portfolio Holder would consider a suggestion to deal with the housing shortage by building on golf courses.

Councillor Bassett advised that any planning application would be considered by the normal methods.

(d) Planning Policy

Councillor J H Whitehouse asked the Planning Policy Portfolio Holder about the recent training he had attended regarding producing Local Plans with a planning inspector and what issues were raised from these session that would concern the Council?

Councillor Bassett advised that he had discussed issues with other authorities and whether they were experiencing the same problems. He advised that they had spoken with the Planning Inspector and asked about the consistency of the Inspectors and their training with the new guidance. He had passed on this information to the Forward Planning Team.

(e) Food bank

Councillor S Murray asked the Leader of the Council if he thought the voluntary section of the community provided a valuable service; whether he would congratulate the Waltham Abbey Church Community in creating the second food bank in the District; and congratulate the Loughton Food Bank for a community award recently

received and the 350 adult and 140 children food parcels they have handed out since April 2014?

Councillor C Whitbread thanked the voluntary sector for providing an excellent in service especially in times of need. He congratulated the Loughton food bank for their services and Waltham Abbey church community for setting up the food bank.

(f) Duty to co-operate

Councillor Wixley asked the Planning Policy Portfolio Holder why not all the local authorities bordering this authority attended the "Duty to Co-operate" Board meeting and were they likely to in the future?

Councillor Bassett advised that he had spoken to the authorities in the local SHMA and surrounding area, whilst also attending other separate meeting regularly, as it proved difficult to sometimes get all authorities together.

(g) NEPP CCTV Car

Councillor Girling asked the Safer, Greener and Transport Portfolio Holder whether a time frame had been advised for the repair of the NEPP CCTV car and whether the car had been replaced with Civil Enforcement Officers because of concerns raised by a recent accident outside Hereward Primary School, Loughton.

Councillor Waller advised that it should be returning shortly although the company who supply the service to NEPP were resolving some issues with the instant relay of images back to Colchester. He asked any Members to advise of locations that were having problems, so that he could liaise with NEPP.

(h) Green Belt

Councillor Wagland asked the Planning Policy Portfolio Holder if the 'Lessons to be learnt' documents could be circulated to members and a note of the cases in relation to the protection of the green belt, including that the housing supply shortfall would not be treated be as exceptional circumstances for granting applications whilst the local plan process was being dealt with?

Councillor Bassett advised that he would circulate the information to Members.

(i) Highways Works

Councillor J M Whitehouse asked the Safer, Greener and Transport Portfolio Holder where any further consideration had been given to extra funding for Highways in conjunction with Essex County Council funding?

Councillor Waller advised that no decision had been made at this time.

56. MOTIONS

(a) Street Lighting

Moved by Councillor Murray and Seconded by Councillor Gode

"This Council notes;

that many 100's of local residents are currently having to walk to underground stations and bus stops without street lights before 6.00am in the morning; and

This Council resolves to:

To ask Essex County Council to consider a switch on of the street lights by 5.00 am in the morning. (making the general switch of between 1.00 am and 5.00 am) therefore allowing Epping Forest residents to catch the early morning buses and trains with the aid of street lighting."

Amendment moved by Councillor Waller and seconded by Councillor Knapman

"That the words " this Council resolves to ask Essex County Council to consider a switch on of the street lights by" be deleted and substituted for "This Council warmly welcomes the decision of the County Council to switch the street lights on at"

Carried

Motion as amended ADOPTED

RESOLVED:

"That this Council warmly welcomes the decision of the County Council to switch the street lights on at 5.00 am in the morning. (making the general switch of between 1.00 am and 5.00 am) therefore allowing Epping Forest residents to catch the early morning buses and trains with the aid of street lighting."

57. REPORTS OF THE CABINET

(a) Supplementary funding for the procurement and appointment of Marketing Agents to seek an Operational Partner to manage the aviation activities at North Weald Airfield.

Councillor Grigg presented a report seeking supplementary funding from the District Development Fund for the procurement and appointment of Marketing Agents to seek an Operational Partner to manage the aviation activities at North Weald Airfield.

The Portfolio Holder advised that a supplementary estimate from the District Development Fund for £60,000 was required for the Marketing Agent.

Report as first moved **ADOPTED**

RESOLVED:

That the supplementary estimate from the District Development Fund for $\pounds 60,000$ be approved.

(b) Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2014/15 to 2016/17 Amendment.

Councillor Stavrou presented a report seeking the amendment of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2014/15 to 2016/17 to permit lending to service providers that the Council were in a contractual relationship with.

Report as first moved **ADOPTED**

RESOLVED:

That the Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2014/15 to 2016/14 be amended to permit lending to Service Providers that the Council is in a contractual relationship with.

58. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

(a) Report of the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Council received a written report from Councillor Morgan, the Chairman of Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Councillor Morgan advised that a representative from Essex County Council, Chris Martin, Integrated Commissioning Director (West), was coming to speak to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on Monday 10 November 2014. He would be talking about Children Services in the County and their current commissioning intentions for young children based upon an Early Years review they had completed.

Councillor Morgan noted Councillor Wagland's comments regarding a Task and Finish Panel's work on Children's Services and undertook to forward the information to the relevant officers.

59. APPOINTMENT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE

The Council received notification of a change of membership for the Licensing Committee for the remainder of the current municipal year.

RESOLVED:

That Councillor K Adams replaces J H Whitehouse on the Licensing Committee for the remainder of the current municipal year.

60. LEADER DECISION - COUNCIL HOUSEBUILDING CABINET COMMITTEE

The Council noted a decision taken by the Leader of the Council to amend the terms of reference of the Housebuilding Cabinet Committee, to appropriate Council-owned land, held for housing purposes and identified for Council house-building for planning purposes under provisions laid out in Section 122 of the 1972 Act and Section 226 (1) (a) of the 1990 Act on the grounds that the land is no longer required for the purposes for which it is currently held in the Housing Revenue Account.

61. JOINT ARRANGEMENTS AND EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

(a) Roding Valley Meadows – Local Nature Reserve

Councillor Murray advised that the Warden, Patrick Bailey was leaving after 9 years of service at the Nature Reserve. He wanted to acknowledge his service, dedication and his involvement of the voluntary workers.

(b) Grange Farm Trust

Councillor Knapman asked that a report be made by the representative from the Grange Farm Trust for:

- (a) updates on their financial and working relationship with Colebrook Royals; and
- (b) updates on where the grants for local communities had been received in the District.
- (c) Citizen Advice Bureau (CAB)

Councillor Shiell advised that following the demolition of the CAB office in Hemnall Street, Epping a temporary office had been found at the Epping re-use centre until the new offices were completed in 2015. She advised that the Loughton CAB office at St Mary's Church was also to be demolished and this could be as early as summer 2015. She also offered her congratulations to advisors, who had achieved high marks on the Quality of Advice and Assessment Awards.

62. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED:

That the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the items of business set out below on the grounds that they would involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972:

Agenda <u>Item No</u> Number	<u>Subject</u>	Exempt Information <u>Paragraph</u>
16	Proposed Development of St Johns Road, Epping	3

63. REPORT OF THE CABINET

Councillor Grigg presented a report seeking a supplementary Capital estimate for the proposed development of St Johns Road, Epping.

Report as first moved **ADOPTED**

RESOLVED:

That a supplementary estimate from the Capital programme for £1 million for the purchase of Essex County Council's land interest in the development site at St John's Road, Epping be approved.

CHAIRMAN